

Monterey County

168 West Alisal Street, 1st Floor Salinas, CA 93901 831.755.5066

Board Order

Upon motion of Supervisor Potter, seconded by Supervisor Armenta and carried by those members present, the Board of Supervisors hereby:

Public hearing held adopted Resolution No. 14-115:

- a. Adopted a Negative Declaration;
- b. Approved a Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Monterey and California-American Water Company to formalize and implement Cal Am's agreement to offset Cal Am's water service to the approved nine-lot Oaks subdivision with an equal amount of water from the Oaks' subdivision well, so as to result in no net transfer of water;
- c. Authorized the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute the Memorandum of Understanding. (REF130072/Oaks MOU, San Benancio Road, Toro Area Plan)

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 6th day of May 2014, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES:

Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno, Salinas, Parker and Potter

NOES: None ABSENT: None

I, Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 77 for the meeting on May 6, 2014.

Dated: May 6, 2014 File Number: RES 14-047 Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors County of Monterey, State of California

By Denie Danwell

Before the Board of Supervisors in and for the County of Monterey, State of California

Resolution No. 14-115	
Adopting a Negative Declaration,)
Approving a Memorandum of)
Understanding with Cal Am, and)
Authorizing the Chair of the Board)
to Execute the MOU)
(REF130072/Oaks MOU))

This resolution is made with reference to the following facts:

- 1. On May 6, 2014, the Board of Supervisors conducted a duly noticed public hearing to consider adoption of a Negative Declaration and approval of a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") between the County of Monterey and California-American Water Company ("Cal Am") to formalize and implement Cal Am's agreement to offset Cal Am's water service to the approved nine-lot Oaks subdivision with an equal amount of water from the Oaks' subdivision well, so as to result in no net transfer of water. The MOU is attached to the May 6, 2014 staff report as Attachment C and incorporated herein by reference.
- 2. This MOU serves the public health, safety and welfare by ensuring that an already approved residential subdivision, known as the Oaks subdivision, has a potable water supply that meets federal and state drinking water standards while being consistent with the Oaks' subdivision approval requiring that the water source not intensify water use in the County's B-8 zoning district.
- 3. The Board finds that the MOU is necessitated by the unique circumstances of this case and protection of public health, that the MOU is limited to its facts, and that the MOU is not intended to establish policy or serve as precedent for any other project.
- 4. The Oaks subdivision divided a 325.7- acre parcel into nine residential lots ranging in size from 1.7 to 13.6 acres and a remainder parcel of 285.7 acres (hereafter the "Oaks Subdivision"), located on the east side of San Benancio Road in the Toro Area Plan area of the County. The Board of Supervisors approved the vesting tentative map for the subdivision on May 8, 2001 and accepted the final map on June 20, 2006. The final map was recorded on June 30, 2006 at Volume 23, Cities and Towns, page 32, in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Monterey.
- 5. Condition 34 of the Oaks' vesting tentative map required the subdivider; "to provide a signed written agreement between the subdivider and Ambler Park Water Utility (APWU) requiring: a) the subdivider to convey a newly constructed well complete with water distribution infrastructure and fire flow water supply; and b) APWU to operate the system as a satellite or stand alone system providing domestic and fire flow water supply to the subdivision in accordance with title 22 and the California Public Utility Commission standards. The total costs for item "a" is to be born [sic] by the developer and not APWU or its customers. If at any point in the future, the Toro B-8 zoning overlay is removed, and this stand alone system is to be consolidated with any other system, pumping of water (produced by this well) outside of Monterey County Water Resources Agency zones 2 & 2A is prohibited except in the case of emergency."
- 6. Condition 35 of the Oaks' vesting tentative map required the "Design the water system improvements to meet the standards as found in Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and as found in the Residential Subdivision Water Supply Standards. Submit engineered plans for the water system

improvements and any associated fees to APWU for review and approval prior to installing (or bonding) the improvements. Provide evidence that APWU has reviewed and approved the plans. Applicant shall pay all Land Use review fees prior to filing the final map."

- 7. Prior to the Board accepting the final map, staff advised the Board of Supervisors that the applicant had met all conditions of approval. Staff found that the subdivider had complied with condition 34 because the subdivider provided a copy to staff of the signed written agreement between the subdivider and Cal Am, as required by the condition. (Cal Am has purchased Ambler Park; therefore, the agreement is between the subdivider and Cal Am.) Staff found that subdivider had complied with Condition 35 based on the subdivider provided a letter from Cal Am stating that it had reviewed and approved the plans for the Oaks subdivision water system. Staff "cleared" the conditions after receiving copies of the documentation required by the conditions. The Board's final map acceptance presumes that the conditions of compliance were met. (See Government Code section 66473.)
- 8. A change in the federal arsenic water standard requires treatment of the Oaks' well water. The Oaks' well tested at 35 parts per billion (ppb) when the tentative map was approved. Between the tentative and final map approvals, the federal drinking water standard for arsenic was reduced from 50 ppb to 10 ppb, and the state was required to adopt a revised standard no less stringent than the federal standard. The new federal standard for arsenic of 10 ppb was adopted on February 22, 2002 and became enforceable on January 23, 2006. Although the Oaks' well was compliant with the earlier standard when the tentative map was approved, the well water exceeds the federal standard that went into effect in 2006.
- 9. Due to the need to treat the water to meet drinking water standards, staff previously arranged for Cal Am through its Monterey District Ambler Park system to serve the Oaks lots on the basis that Cal Am would draw water from the Oaks' well, treat the water for high arsenic at the Ambler Park water treatment plant, and then supply the treated water to the Oaks' lot. Consistent with the intent for water supply to be based on the Oaks well, not Ambler Park's water supply, the understanding was that the Cal Am would pump from the Oaks well into the Ambler system the same amount of treated water that the Ambler system would provide to the nine Oaks lots, resulting in no net transfer of water. In 2006, Cal Am committed to the Monterey County Water Resources Agency to monitor the Oaks' well production and the Oaks lots' consumption for this purpose. This MOU formalizes that commitment and fleshes out the details of implementation, monitoring, reporting, and enforcement.
- 10. The final Oaks' map was recorded in 2006, and since then, at least some lots have been sold into individual ownership. Homes have been built on three lots in the Oaks subdivision. Following recordation of the final map, the County may modify the final map only if the County finds that "there are changes in circumstances that make any or all of the conditions of the map no longer appropriate or necessary and that the modifications do not impose any additional burden on the fee owners of the real property, and if the modifications do not alter any right, title, or interest in real property reflected on the recorded map." (Gov't Code sec. 66472.1.) The MOU does not does not impose any additional burden on the current owners of the nine lots nor alter any of their rights, title, or interest in their property.
- 11. The Board finds that, under the unique circumstances of this case, the MOU carries out the intent of the Oaks subdivision's conditions of approval, is necessitated by the new federal standard for arsenic, and is consistent with the 2010 General Plan and County's B-8 zoning.
- 12. The Board finds that the 2010 General Plan Policies PS-3.1, PS 3.2 and PS-1.3 do not apply to the MOU because it does not authorize any new development and does not require a discretionary permit.

The MOU does not reopen the approval of the Oaks subdivision for which the tentative map was approved and final map was accepted years ago, before the adoption of the 2010 General Plan. The MOU does not result in intensification of water use. The MOU formalizes the mechanisms by which an equal exchange of water between the Ambler system and the Oaks' well will be implemented, monitored, reported, and enforced.

- 13. The MOU is consistent with County zoning. The Ambler Park system's wells are within County's B-8 zoning overlay district, while the Oaks' well is not. The purpose of the B-8 zone is to "restrict development and/or intensification of land use in areas where, due to water supply ... or similar measurable public-facility type constraints, additional development and/or intensification of land use if [sic] found to be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the area, or the County as a whole." Under the MOU, Cal Am must offset the water it supplies to the Oaks subdivision by an equal transfer of water from the Oaks' well into the Ambler system, resulting in no intensification of water use in the B-8 zone. The MOU is consistent with County's B-8 zoning because Ambler's service to the Oaks subdivision under the terms set forth in the MOU will not result in an intensification of water use in the B-8 zone and is not detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare.
- 14. The Oaks' well lies within Monterey County Water Resources Agency's benefit assessment "Zone 2C," while the Ambler treatment plant lies outside Zone 2C. Zone 2C is a benefit assessment zone adopted by MCWRA pursuant to the Monterey County Water Resources Agency Act. The Act prohibits the exportation of water from the Salinas River groundwater basin. (California Water Code Appendix, Chapter 52 ("Agency Act"). Under the MOU, Cal Am would ensure that the volume of water it pumps from the Oaks' well into the Ambler Park water system does not exceed the amount of water supplied from Ambler to the Oaks. Therefore, pumping water from the Oaks well into the Ambler system would not result in export of water out of Monterey County Water Resources Agency's benefit assessment Zone 2C. This manner of implementation protects the public health while meeting the intent of condition 34 not to intensify water use in the County's B-8 zone and not to export water out of MCWRA's benefit assessment Zone 2c. The General Manager of the Monterey County Water Resources Agency has acknowledged this Memorandum of Understanding.
- 15. In 2010, County staff learned that Cal Am had begun to serve the Oaks' homes without yet bringing the Oaks' well on line. Staff notified Cal Am of its obligations, and staff also notified the subdivider that it would not issue additional building permits until the issue of water service without intensification of water use in the B-8 zone was resolved. This MOU resolves the issue by formalizing the mechanisms by which an equal exchange of water between the Ambler system and the Oaks' well will be implemented, monitored, reported, and enforced. Cal Am has applied to the California Department of Health to operate the Oaks well, and Cal Am agrees in the MOU to diligently pursue the necessary permits to bring the Oaks well into its state-permitted water system.
- 16. On December 4, 2012, the Board of Supervisors conducted a duly noticed public hearing to consider alternatives for the provision of safe, potable water to the "Oaks subdivision" and directed staff to negotiate an MOU with Cal Am, conduct environmental review, and return to the Board. The public hearing was noticed for October 9, 2012 and continued to December 4, 2012 at the request of Save Our Peninsula Committee with concurrence of staff.
- 17. At the public hearing on December 4, 2012, the Board had the opportunity review the circumstances and history that lead to the current status of the water supply to the Oaks subdivision, hear public testimony, and provide direction to staff as to which mechanism to pursue to ensure a safe, potable water supply to the Oaks that is consistent with County zoning and respects the right, title and interest

- of the existing lot owners. Save Our Peninsula Committee has since stipulated that the County has satisfactorily completed review of the Oaks subdivision condition compliance. (Stipulation for Modification of Judgment and Disposition of Pending Motion, executed in July 2013, in *Save Our Peninsula Committee v. County of Monterey*, (Monterey Superior Court case no. M110694).) The Board of Supervisors conducted a duly noticed public hearing on this MOU on May 6, 2014.
- 18. The Board finds that the proposed MOU is the method of providing safe, potable drinking water to the Oaks subdivision that is the most feasible, most capable of success, and therefore most protective of public health under the unique circumstances of this case. Cal Am through its Ambler Park water treatment plant has the technical, managerial and financial capability to treat water. Cal Am also has the ability to serve the Oaks subdivision because Cal Am already owns the Oaks' well and its infrastructure and has extended its Monterey District Ambler Park service area to include the Oaks subdivision. Because the MOU enforces no net transfer of water from Ambler to the Oaks and vice versa, it would not intensify water use in the County's B-8 zone. It is also the option that may be least costly to ratepayers because it relies on a well and water infrastructure whose cost was already borne by the Oaks' subdivider and would require no new construction. It is also the least disruptive to the existing owners of the nine lots because the obligations to balance the water supply would fall entirely on Cal Am and would cause no disruption of service to the homeowners. The MOU creates a binding contractual obligation on the part of Cal Am to offset Cal Am Monterey District Ambler Park's water service to the Oaks subdivision with an equal amount of water to be pumped from the Oaks well into the Ambler Park water system, so as to result in no net transfer of water. The MOU includes a provision whereby the Oaks well would replenish all water already provided by Ambler to the Oaks lots to ensure that the Oaks subdivision does not result in loss of water to the B-8 zone. The MOU includes strict monitoring and reporting requirements and creates an enforceable legal obligation.
- 19. The Board finds, on the basis of the whole record before it, that there is no substantial evidence that the MOU will have a significant effect on the environment and finds that the Negative Declaration reflects the lead agency's independent judgment and analysis. Monterey County RMA-Planning prepared an Initial Study pursuant to CEQA. The Initial Study is on file in the offices of RMA-Planning and is hereby incorporated by reference (REF130072). The Initial Study/draft Negative Declaration was prepared in accordance with CEQA and circulated for public review from August 19, 2013 through October 10, 2013 (SCH#: 2013081054). Issues that were analyzed in the Negative Declaration include: hydrology/water quality and land use/planning. Hydrology/Water Quality addressed potential impacts to the depletion of groundwater supplies and/or interference with groundwater replenishment; the project will not have a substantial adverse impact on hydrology since the MOU requires the equal exchange of water from one area to another and does not intensify water use or authorize any additional pumping or water service than already exists. Land Use/Planning addressed potential conflicts with the applicable land use plan, policy, or regulation of an agency with jurisdiction over the project. Due to the requirement of an equal exchange of water, the project will not conflict with the B-8 zoning. The MOU does not authorize any new development and does not require a discretionary permit. The MOU does not reopen the approval of the Oaks subdivision for which the tentative map was approved and final map already accepted. The MOU merely formalizes the mechanisms by which an equal exchange of water between the Ambler system and the Oaks' well will be implemented, monitored, reported, and enforced. The MOU is not growth-inducing because it applies only to the Oaks subdivision due to the unique and particular facts and circumstances and public health considerations requiring treatment of water for an already approved subdivision. By its terms, the MOU is not to be used to serve any other property. The Clerk of the Board of Supervisors and the Monterey County Planning-RMA, located at 168 West Alisal Street, Salinas, California are the custodians respectively of the documents and other materials that constitute the record of proceedings upon which the decision to adopt the negative declaration is based.

20. The County has considered the comments received on the Initial Study/Negative Declaration, and the comments do not present evidence altering the conclusion that the MOU will not have a significant effect on the environment. In response to the comments, staff has made made a few clarifications to the Initial Study, but these clarifications do not alter the significance conclusions of the Initial Study and do not require recirculation of the initial study. Responses to specific comment letters were provided in the staff report to the Board of Supervisors for the May 6, 2014 hearing and are incorporated herein by reference.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors does hereby:

- a. Found that the above recitals and findings are true and correct;
- b. Adopted the Negative Declaration;
- c. Approved the Memorandum of Understanding between the California American Water Company and the County of Monterey; and
- d. Authorized the Chair of the Board of Supervisors to execute the Memorandum of Understanding.

PASSED AND ADOPTED upon motion of Supervisor Potter seconded by Supervisor Armenta and carried this 6th day of May 2014, by the following vote, to wit:

AYES: Supervisors Armenta, Calcagno, Salinas, Parker and Potter

NOES: None ABSENT: None

I, Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey, State of California, hereby certify that the foregoing is a true copy of an original order of said Board of Supervisors duly made and entered in the minutes thereof of Minute Book 77 for the meeting on May 6, 2014.

Dated: May 7, 2014 File Number: RES 14-047 Gail T. Borkowski, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors County of Monterey, State of California

By Danise Han

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY AND COUNTY OF MONTEREY

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into this 6 Hday of May 20 M by and between California-American Water Company ("Cal Am") and the County of Monterey ("County"), with reference to the following facts:

RECITALS

- A. The parties desire to enter into this MOU to memorialize the parties' agreement to certain terms and conditions governing Cal Am's provision of water to the Oaks subdivision for the purpose of ensuring that Cal Am's water service to the Oaks subdivision will be offset by an equal amount of water drawn from the Oaks well.
- B. On May 8, 2001, the County of Monterey approved a tentative map to subdivide a 325.7-acre parcel into 9 residential lots ranging in size from 1.7 to 13.6 acres and a remainder parcel of 285.7 acres (hereafter the "Oaks Subdivision"). On June 20, 2006, the County accepted the final map for the Oaks Subdivision, which map was recorded on June 30, 2006, at Volume 23, Cities and Towns, page 32, in the Office of the Recorder of the County of Monterey. A copy of the final recorded map is attached hereto as Attachment 1 and incorporated herein by reference.
- C. Pursuant to conditions of approval of the tentative map, the subdivider entered into an agreement with Cal-Am in 2004 whereby the subdivider agreed to construct a well ("Oaks' well) and water distribution system for domestic and fire flow water supply ("water system") for the Oaks subdivision and to transfer the water system to Cal Am in exchange for Cal Am's agreement to operate and maintain the water system either as a stand-alone or satellite system providing domestic and fire flow water supply to the Oaks Subdivision. The agreement by its terms was to take effect upon the recordation of the final map for the Oaks subdivision. The Oaks' well and water infrastructure has since been conveyed to Cal Am.
- D. As a water utility regulated by the California Public Utilities Commission and other federal and state agencies, Cal Am must provide finished water that meets all applicable federal and state water quality standards when it provides water service.
- E. The raw water from the Oaks' well does not meet federal and state water quality standards, specifically the Maximum Contaminant Level (MCL) for arsenic. A sample taken in August 2000 from the Oaks' well indicated the presence of arsenic at 35 parts per billion (ppb). At the time of the sample, the federal arsenic standard was 50 ppb, so the Oaks' well complied with drinking water standards at that time. A new federal standard for arsenic, reducing the MCL for arsenic to 10 ppb, was adopted on February 22, 2002 and became enforceable on January 23, 2006. Therefore, the Oaks well no longer meets drinking water standards, and it is necessary to treat the water or find an

- alternate water supply for the Oaks' subdivision in order for the nine approved lots to have a potable water supply that meets drinking water standards.
- F. The County has determined that the solution to providing potable water to the Oaks subdivision that is the most feasible, most capable of success, and therefore most protective of public health while not intensifying water use in Cal Am's Monterey District Ambler Park service area is for Cal Am to serve the Oaks subdivision with water that has been treated by Cal Am to meet drinking water standards, provided that Cal Am augment the Ambler water supply by transferring raw water from the Oaks' well to the Ambler Park water system in an amount equal to the amount Cal Am is supplying to the Oaks' subdivision. This solution is the most feasible because Cal Am through its Ambler Park water treatment plant has the technical, managerial and financial capability to treat water, and as of the execution of this MOU, no other treatment facility with the technical, managerial, and financial capability to treat the Oaks' well water exists. Cal Am also has the ability to serve the Oaks subdivision because Cal Am already owns the Oaks' well and its infrastructure, and via Advice Letter 617 filed with the California Public Utilities Commission (PUC), has extended its Monterey District Ambler Park service area to include the Oaks subdivision.
- G. The Ambler water treatment plant is within the County's B-8 zoning district. The purpose of the B-8 zoning district is to "restrict development and/or intensification of land use in areas where, due to water supply ... or similar measurable public-facility type constraints, additional development and/or intensification of land use if [sic] found to be detrimental to the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the area, or the County as a whole." When the Oaks' tentative map was approved, water was to be supplied directly by the Oaks' well which is not within the County's B-8 zone. Ambler's water supply is located in the County's B-8 zone. The well water did not exceed the federal drinking water standards in effect at the time of the tentative map approval, and therefore, treatment of the water was not an issue at that time. To enable treatment of the water while ensuring that water treatment and service by Ambler to the Oaks do not result in intensification of water use in the B-8 zone, it is necessary for Cal Am to offset the water it supplies to the Oaks subdivision by an equal transfer of water from the Oaks' well into the Ambler system.
- H. Conversely, the Oaks' well lies within Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA)'s benefit assessment "Zone 2C," while the Ambler Treatment Plant is not within Zone 2C. Zone 2C is a benefit assessment zone adopted by MCWRA pursuant to the Monterey County Water Resources Agency Act, and the Act prohibits the exportation of water from the Salinas River groundwater basin. (California Water Code Appendix, Chapter 52 ("Agency Act").) This MOU will not result in exportation of water from the Salinas River groundwater basin, as the purpose of the MOU is ensure treatment of water to drinking water standards, not to permit net transfer of water, and the MOU requires an equal amount of water be returned to the Oaks' subdivision as is pumped from the Oaks' well into the Ambler Park water system for treatment.

- I. In 2006, Cal Am committed to quarterly monitoring of both the production records from the Oaks' well and the water consumption of the nine lots in the Oaks' subdivision. The understanding by staff was that water from the Oaks' well would be piped to the Ambler Water treatment plant to be treated and returned to the Oaks subdivision, with no net transfer of water. More recent discussions have clarified that it is not physically feasible to ensure that the exact same molecules of water sent for treatment are the same as those returned to the Oaks, but it is feasible to ensure that the exact same volume of water be sent for treatment as is returned to the Oaks' subdivision.
- J. Homes have been built on three of the nine lots in the Oaks subdivision. The County has not issued building permits on any of the remaining lots, pending Board of Supervisors' approval of a mechanism ensuring service of water to the Oaks subdivision that meets drinking water standards while not intensifying water use in the B-8 zone.
- K. The parties now desire to enter into this MOU to memorialize Cal Am's prior commitment to monitor the Oaks' well production and the Oaks' lots' consumption and to prescribe the terms and conditions under which Cal Am will balance the volume of treated water provided to the Oaks subdivision with the volume of water pumped from the Oaks well into the Ambler Park water system, so as to result in no net transfer of water.
- L. The County finds that this MOU is consistent with County's B-8 zoning because Ambler's service to the Oaks subdivision under the terms set forth in this MOU will not result in an intensification of water use in the B-8 zone and is not detrimental to the public health, safety, and welfare.
- M. An initial study/proposed Negative Declaration was prepared for this MOU and was circulated for public review from August 19, 2013 to October 4, 2013. On the same date as the Board held a public hearing on this MOU and prior to approving this MOU, the Board of Supervisors adopted the Negative Declaration, finding on the basis of the whole record, including the initial study, comments received on the initial study, and the analysis contained in staff reports presented to the Board of Supervisors on this matter, that there is no substantial evidence that the MOU will have a significant effect on the environment and further finding that the negative declaration reflects the lead agency's independent judgment and analysis.
- N. This MOU serves to protect the public health, safety and welfare by ensuring a water supply to the Oaks' subdivision that meets federal and state drinking water standards without intensifying water use in the County's B-8 zone or resulting in net export of water out of the Salinas River groundwater basin.
- O. This MOU is intended to be binding on Cal Am, its agents, successors and assigns.
- P. Cal Am has voluntarily entered into this agreement with the County due to the unique and particular facts and circumstances related to the Oaks subdivision and the conditions of approval by County of the Oaks' subdivision.

NOW, THEREFORE, in view of the foregoing recitals, the parties agree as follows:

- 1. Cal Am will diligently pursue any permits and permit amendments necessary to incorporate the Oaks' well into its water system and, upon obtaining such permits, will incorporate the Oaks' well into the Cal Am Monterey District Ambler Park system ("Ambler Park Water System").
- 2. Cal Am shall on a quarterly basis balance the volume of treated water sent from the Ambler Park Water System to the Oaks subdivision and the water sent from the Oaks well to the Ambler Park Water System so as to result in no net transfer of water. Cal Am shall accomplish said balance by transferring a volume of raw water from the Oaks well to the Ambler Park Water System equal to the volume of water served by Ambler to the Oaks' lots. Equal volume shall include the calculated transportation water loss incurred in connection with Ambler's supply to the Oaks subdivision. The quantity of water pumped from the Oaks subdivision well to the Ambler Park Water System shall match the quarterly total plus the calculated transportation water loss.
- 3. Cal Am shall maintain water meters in good working order for its service to the Oaks lots, including residences and irrigation, so as to determine the amount of water served to the Oaks lots by the Ambler Park Water System. Cal Am shall also maintain a water meter(s) in good working order at the Oaks well, which shall be used to determine the volume of water pumped from the well. Within the first sixty days of each calendar year, Cal Am shall test all meters described in this Paragraph in accordance with corresponding manufacturer(s) specifications, and using competent personnel who are qualified to perform such testing. Cal Am shall submit a report including the results of this testing to the Monterey County Health Department Environmental Health Bureau (EHB) with a copy to the MCWRA no later than thirty days following the completion of the first quarter of each calendar year. The report described in this Paragraph may be combined and submitted with a quarterly report as described in Paragraph 6.
- 4. Cal Am shall on a quarterly basis total the monthly meter readings of the nine lots in the Oaks subdivision and the meter for irrigation of the common entrance. The water system's calculated transportation water loss for the quarter shall be added to the quarterly total meter readings. The quantity of water resulting from the addition of the quarterly total of the monthly meter readings and the calculated transportation water loss shall be pumped from the Oaks' well into the Ambler Park Water System on a quarterly basis during the calendar year (the four quarters being January through March, April through June, July through September, and October through December). Quarterly pumping of the Oaks' well based on the quarterly calculation within the month following the end of the quarter shall be considered to satisfy the no net transfer requirement.
- 5. Cal Am shall on a quarterly basis submit to EHB with a copy to the MCWRA a quarterly water audit report for review by EHB. Cal Am shall submit the water audit report no later than thirty days following each quarter. The water audit report shall be prepared by a qualified engineer experienced in water system operations. The water audit report shall

indicate the quantity of water that was delivered to the Oaks subdivision (determined by the quarterly total of monthly meter readings of the nine Oaks subdivision lots and irrigation system plus the calculated transportation water loss) from the Ambler Park Water System and the quantity of water that was pumped from the Oaks' well to the Ambler Park Water System during the quarter. The report shall confirm that the quantity of water pumped from the Oaks' well to the Ambler Park Water System equals the quarterly total plus the calculated transportation water loss. The report shall demonstrate how the calculated transportation water loss was determined. If the report or other information indicates that the volume of water pumped from the Oaks' well into the Ambler Park Water System does not equal the volume calculated from the quarterly meter reading and the calculated transportation water system loss of the Oaks subdivision, then Cal Am shall explain the reasons for the discrepancy and the corrective action Cal Am proposes to take to achieve no net transfer. Cal Am shall take such steps as EHB may require to bring the transfer back into balance.

- 6. Cal Am shall begin quarterly pumping of the Oaks' well into the Ambler system in the first quarter after Cal Am obtains all necessary permits to include the Oaks' well within its system. Additionally, to account for the water service provided by Ambler to the Oaks lots predating this quarterly pumping, Cal Am shall as part of its first draw from the Oaks' well transfer into the Ambler system an amount of water equivalent to the total amount of water previously served by Ambler to the Oaks lots.
- 7. This agreement pertains only to the nine lots of the Oaks subdivision due to the unique and particular facts and circumstances and public health considerations requiring treatment of water to an already approved subdivision. This agreement shall not be used to serve any other property.
- 8. This MOU is binding on the parties and their agents, successors and assigns. Cal Am accepts these obligations for itself, its agents, and its successors and assigns and shall inform its agents, successors and assigns of these obligations. This MOU shall not be terminated unless an alternative mechanism is put in place to provide water that meets drinking water standards to the Oaks subdivision's nine lots and that does not intensify use of water from the County's B-8 zoning district in effect at that time. Any such termination would require approval of Cal Am and the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey upon findings that these conditions precedent to termination have been met.
- 9. This MOU may not be amended except by a written instrument approved and signed by Cal Am and the Board of Supervisors of the County of Monterey.
- 10. Any individual executing this MOU or any amendment thereto on behalf of the County or Cal Am warrants that he or she has the requisite authority to enter into this MOU on behalf of such party and bind the party to the terms and conditions of this MOU.
- 11. This MOU may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same agreement.

12. This MOU shall take effect immediately when signed by both the County and Cal Am.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Monterey and California-American Water Company through their duly authorized agents have executed this agreement as of the date and year written below.

	COUNTY OF MONTEREY
Dated: <u>5 / 7 / 14</u>	By: Chair, Monterey County Board of Supervisors
Dated: 5/5/14	CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY By:
ı į ·	Title: Director Operations Coastal Division
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	
COUNTY OF MONTEREY	
By: Wendy Strinling Sr. Deputy County Counsel	
CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER C	OMPANY
By:Attorney for Cal-Am	

12. This MOU shall take effect immediately when signed by both the County and Cal Am.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Monterey and California-American Water Company through their duly authorized agents have executed this agreement as of the date and year written below.

	COUNTY OF MONTEREY
Dated:	By: Chair, Monterey County Board of Supervisors
Dated: 5/5/14	By: Exid J. Smoolsice Title: Director Operations
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	Coastal Division
AFFROVED AS TO FORM.	
COUNTY OF MONTEREY	
By: Wendy Strinling Sr. Deputy County Counsel	
CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATE	ER COMPANY
By:	
Attorney for Cal-Am	

12. This MOU shall take effect immediately when signed by both the County and Cal Am.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County of Monterey and California-American Water Company through their duly authorized agents have executed this agreement as of the date and year written below.

	COUNTY OF MONTEREY
Dated:	By: Chair, Monterey County Board of Supervisors
Dated: 4/29/14	CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER COMPANY By:
	Title: Diesetor Operations
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	
COUNTY OF MONTEREY	
By:	·
Wendy Strimling Sr. Deputy County Counsel	
CALIFORNIA-AMERICAN WATER	COMPANY
Ву:	***************************************
Attorney for Cal Am	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY MONTEREY COUNTY WATER RESOURCES AGENCY

The Monterey County Water Resources Agency hereby acknowledges this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between California-American Water Company ("Cal Am") and the County of Monterey ("County").

MONTEREY COUNTY WATER RESOURCES AGENCY

By: David F. Chardavoyne
General Manager

OWNER'S STATEMENT

WE REMEMY STATE THAT WE ARE THE OWNERS OF OR HAVE SOME RIGHT, TITLE OR NITEKEST IN AND TO THE REAL PROPERTY HICLDOND WITHIN THE EUROPHSION SHOWN UPON THE MAP, AND THAT WE ARE THE OIL'S PERSONS OR CORPORATION WHOSE CONSENT IS RECESSARY TO PASE A COMPREMENT WHOSE CONSIGN IS NOT RECORD AND TO THE A CLANTITUE TO GATE PROPERTY, AND WE CONSIGN TO THE MAKING OF BADD MAY AND SURPRISION AS SHOWN WITHIN THE SOLDER LINE SHOWN THUS.

WE HEREBY DEDICATE FOR PUBLIC USE THOSE CERTAIN EASEMENTS FOR TUBLIC UTILITIES (INCLUDING, BUT NOT UMITED TO GAS, ELECTRIC, WATER TELEPTIONE, COLFUNKEATION, TELEVISION CAME AND SANITARY SHYERS), AND FOR CLUSTER VE KITELIC I VIVE VIND DIG SICI, TOHE" ENDINH TILCIN EVID HIVI, OVEIC OK RINDEC, JAIONE CERLUM ESENE OK ITHIN DERICHMETER LORIAN BOXER VIND AHBLIKE ESENEZI, VIND MOLITARION KETROM LEFTANION CYMER VIND SAMILYLL REGIERED, VIND MOLITARION KETROM LEFTANION CYMER VIND SAMILYLL REGIERED, VIND MOLITARION KETROM nd kuyin layeand dis sia laha, shami di disam kat Mihan sadi quadanda kap etdife of laha are to be kelt Otsh ard telef from ditudings and structures of any Kapo except koadina's, dirubina's, diruh gorifani STRUCTURES TONIGATION SYSTEMS I AWAY PRINCES DELYEVANTE, SIDEWALKE AND APPLICITENANCES THERETO.

WE ALSO HITTED PETICATE FOR PUBLIC USE THOSE CONTAIN EASIMENT, FOR STOCK! WATER DETENTION FORD AND STOCK! DRAIN-PYELINES AS SHOWN WITHIN LOT I AND DESIGNATED . "PAICEL F MYON BAD MAP.

We also hered dedicate for fudilic use those centant - easements, for eaminate educac, for moter fusion and and that eachement to construct (water fire use, fusion function function times the limits, fire lines and afficient managed possibilities function. I precise that that contain easement for nations and educacy any function in easement for nations and educacy.

MY PURTIMES HEREBY DEDICATE TO THE COUNTY OF MUNITEREY ANY AUR ALL RIGHTS OF ACCESS TO ALL TRAFFIC TO AND PICAM SAM BENAMINO PICAM ACCESS TO THE AREA OF LOTE 1,24, AUR 9, ALL AS SHOWN OFF THE HEREB KAY AUR DESIGNATE AT HOR ACCESS SHOW

BUBJECT TO THE FOIL OWING INTERESTS WHICH CALIFOR RIPEN WYO FER, THE SIGNATURES OF WHICH ARE NOT REDUNCED MINESUANT TO SECTION 66436 (C) (I) OF THE GOVERNMENT COPE.

F.G.AE. CO. A CALIFORNIA CORFORATION, AS EASTMENT HOLDER BY DOCUMENT RECORDED IN VOLUME 1625 OF OFFICIAL RECORDS OF MUNICIPETY COUNTY, CAUTORNIA, AT

WASHINGTON UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT AS EASEMENT. HOLDER BY POCULICHT RECOGNED IN REEL 25 OF OR

OWNERS: FERRINI OAKS LLC, A CALIFORNIA LIMITED LIAGILITY COMPANY
BY Plant Manual L.

STATEMENT OF APPROVAL BY SECRETARY OF MONTEREY COUNTY PLANNING COMMISSION

I. ALGARAS S KANDAR SECRETIVAT OF THE MOTHEREY COURTY PLANEAGE COMMISSION HEREBY STATE THAT I HAVE EXAMED IN SAME MAY THAT HE AUGUSTISSION AS STRAW HEREBY STATE SUBSTANTIALLY THE SAME AS IT ATTEMED ON THE TRITATURE MAY AND ANY ATTEMED ON THE TRITATURE MAY AND ANY ATTEMPORE ALTERNATURE TREATER A SAFROWED BY THE MOMENTER TREATER A SAFROWED BY THE MOMENT OF THE CALIFORNIA SUBSTRICT AND ALGORITHM ANY ALTERNATION OF THE CALIFORNIA SUBSTRICT AND ALTERNATION LAW ANY. AS ALMEHOED, AND THE LIGHTREY COUNTY CODE, TILE IS HAVE BEEN COLUMN WITH

> & K. ti 4-14-06 SECRETARY, MONTEREY COUNTY PLANNING COLLAISSING COUNTY OF MOSTEREY.

STATEMENT OF APPROVAL OF THE

CLERK OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

CLERK OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

OF HORITOGE GUINTY, TIBLE OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

OF HORITOGE GUINTY, TIBLE OF STATE THAT SAD POARD ATTERIATE

OF HORITOGE GUINTY, TIBLE OF STATE THAT SAD POARD ATTERIATE

OF HORITOGE GUINTY, TIBLE OF DEDICATION FOR TUBULOUSE IN CONTROL

WITH A LIE TENDAS FOR THE OFFEE OF DEDICATION.

QULQ CLERS OF THE BOARD OF SHATE OF THE COUNTY OF MONTESS!

NOTARY STATEMENT

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 3.5.

ON __15_06 , RETURN ME DEDISES BLOSSEN . (A HOTARY PURILE IN AND FOR SAND CONTINUOUS IN PRESIDENTLY AFFERDED. SAND CONTINUOUS OF STREET, PROPERTY HER CRETERING TO ME ON THE DASHO OF SAND CONTINUOUS OF SA

HOTAL PROPERTY OF LAND OF LAND

COUNTY SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

I LOUTE THAT I HAVE EXAMINED THIS MAY THAT THE COUNTY GOATE OF SUPERVISIONS, GO THAN GO SHOP SELF THAT ALL THE PROPOSIONS OF THE GALFRONIAN SURVIVISION ON MAY ACE ME HAVE BEEN COMPLETE MONTREY COURTY COURT TILLE IS HAVE BEEN COMPLETE WITH ARC IT INT THIS MAY IS ECHINICALLY COTTRECT.

Lucy in a f

PETUTE COUNTY MASSEYER JERT LOUGH LE, 7941

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

LYRGIL L. WILLIAMS, LICENSED (AMD SURVEYCR, DO INSIREDY STATE THAT THIS MAY CORRECTLY REPRESENTS A SURVEY MADE UNDER MY DISCITION MIRRIES JAMINATO LANGUAGE THAT THIS SURVEY IS THUM AND CONTINE AS SHOOMA THAT ALL MONUMENTS ARE OF THE CHARACTER AND OCCUPY THE TURNISHES HEREOFF HERE THE RESCRIPTION OF THE PARTY HEREOFF HEREOF

BURYEN' TO BE KETRACED. NYIEN 1-19-2009 LICENSED AND SURVEYOR STOR EXTIRES 0-30-2006

RECORDER'S STATEMENT

FILED PIPE RECORD AT THE REQUEST OF H.D. PETRUE CO. INC.
THIS JOB AND BAYON HITO. BOOS, AT LE MINUTES FAST
O AND GLYOLUME JOS. OF FOTTERS A TOWNS AT PAGE 5.2
RECORDS OF MONTERSY COUNTY, CALFORNIA.

Stephen L. Vagnini Legipp morror

FEE \$15.00 G-HO 1006-058257

> TRACT JULE THE OAKS SLEDIVISION

(A PRIVATE ROAD SLEDIVISION) STUATE N MONTEREY COUNTY, CAUFOUNIA

AFN 16+01-078
FERRIN OAKS LUC

S-BET 1-0"'S







